San Mateo-Foster City School District

MINUTES

CLOSED SESSION/REGULAR MEETING~BOARD OF TRUSTEES

May 26, 2022, 6:30 PM Closed Session Begins at 5:00 pm | Regular Meeting Begins at 6:30 pm

1. CALL TO ORDER: 5:00 P.M.

2. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION

2.1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: INITIATION OF LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 54956.9(c): one case.

2.2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS (Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8) - Property: Knolls School, 525 42nd Avenue, San Mateo, CA.- Price and Terms of use of Property.

2.3. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EVALUATION/DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE [Gov. Code 54957]

2.4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT, DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT/CBO, & SUPERINTENDENT [Gov. Code 54957]

3. RECONVENE TO REGULAR MEETING

The Regular Board Meeting reconvened at 6:30 pm.

Trustee Proctor requested a moment of silence in honor of the students and teachers that were tragically killed at Robb Elementary School in Uvalde Texas on Tuesday. She indicated that we mourn the tragic loss of lives and our deepest sympathies go to the victim's families, Robb Elementary School students and staff in the Uvalde community.

Also Trustee Proctor expressed that Mr. Lee was a beloved PE Teacher at Audubon Elementary School for the past six year and announced that he sadly passed away last night and indicated that we would like to share our sympathies with his family, his students and the staff at Audubon and everyone who loved him dearly.

3.1. Report out of Closed Session

Trustee Proctor made a report from closed session. The board gave direction to counsel to initiate an action. The action, the defendants, and other details will be disclosed upon inquiry after the complaint is formally filed, unless to do so would jeopardize the district's

ability to effectuate service on one or more unserved parties, or jeopardize its ability to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage."

3.2. Flag Salute

The flag salute was led by Trustee Proctor.

3.3. Roll Call

All Board Members were present:

Kenneth Chin Noelia Corzo Alison Proctor Lisa Warren Shara Watkins

3.4. Approval of Agenda: May 26, 2022 (v)

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Watkins a second by Trustee Corzo.

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

3.5. Approval of Minutes: May 12, 2022 (v)

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Chin a second by Trustee Warren.

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

4. STATEMENTS

4.1. Public Statements Related to Non-agenda Topics:

Public Comments:

None

4.2. Public Statements Related to Agenda Items: Persons will be called on at the appropriate time

4.3. Foundation/Committee Reports

Trustee Corzo reported that the Sanctuary Task Force had the last meeting of the year where they reviewed some highlights of everything that was worked on this year. Meetings will resume the next school year unless there is an emergency.

Trustee Chin reported that he attended the Jefferson School District Educator Housing Grand Opening last Friday and it was amazing and hopes to have something similar in the future in our District.

Trustee Watkins reported that she attended part of the Equity Task Force meeting where they talked about some of the board policies and school discipline. Also attended the Education Foundation Meeting with no significant updates but indicated that the Gala will be October 21 and that they are working on the planning.

Trustee Proctor attended the Communications meeting where they talked about the rollout of the new website and also the new parent and teacher communication tool that will be coming out.

4.4. SMETA/CSEA/SMEAA Updates

Alicia Aragon thanked all our students, staff and community members for making the cranes Mr. Lee requested and added that it showed how much he was loved by everyone. Mrs. Aragon also expressed their condolences to his family, the staff at Audubon and the many members of our community that he so positively impacted and quoted Mr. Lee "Don't wait to be happy, be happy now. Life is so short so live, laugh and love like today is your last". Also thanked everyone that went to Audubon today to assist the students with the grieving process. Ms. Aragon added that they have reached a tentative agreement in regards to paying health care benefits for the 22-23 and 23-24 school years and are excited for members to vote for that.

Julie MacArthur acknowledged that this is tough for the kids and the teachers and appreciates the love and compassion that was shown for Mr. Lee. Also acknowledged coming up at the 5th and 8th grade promotion ceremonies the recipients of the SMETA Social Justice Award will be honored and congratulated all the recipients. Also reported that the CASP testing is wrapping up and teachers are working hard to support their students and appreciate the hard work.

Nancy Bui, Sunnybrae Principal reported that on behalf of SMEAA they would like to give their condolences to the Audubon community for their beloved teacher. Ms. Bui added that they are wrapping up with CASP testing, LCAP and they are celebrating our

studen's graduating from 5th and 8th grade and included that SMEAA wishes everyone a happy Asian Pacific Heritage month. Mrs. Buie also thanked the Superintendent and the Trustees for visiting Sunnybrae school site last Tuesday. It was great that they were able to see the STEM Lab and the Art in Action program. Also reported that two nights ago they had their open house and thanked the District Math team for the ST Math presentation which was incredible. Ms. Bui also gave an update of events coming up at Sunnybrae and publicly recognized Roseanna Marino's hard work as the Administrative Assistant and for being the glue that holds the school together.

4.5. Announcements

Trustee Watkins took a moment to acknowledge the tragic events of this week and the impacts that that has had in our community and thanked everyone, all the teachers and staff that show up everyday and protect our students in those moments.

Trustee Corzo followed up and knows that there is a lot of worry, fear, grief but we also have to act and need to be mindful of organizations who lift up the fight against gun violence and that we have had way too many incidents in our nation and feels committed that we act and will have something agendized about this topic.

Trustee Proctor shared that the Columbine shooting back in 1999 changed her life and it is very sad that things have not changed and hopes that we can do something to make a difference. Also thanked our teachers and staff for loving our kids and added that the love is resiprocal.

4.6. Superintendent Report

Superintendent Ochoa expressed that his first comment is to share the reaction and the response to the events in Texas this week and as an administrator is completely shaken by the loss that these families and this community is feeling and wants families to know that we are initiating work at every single school site to pay attention to our physical facilities, to the social emotional support we give our students, and to make sure that we come together with district administrators to implement responses to the needs in our own campuses and communities. Also Superintendent Ochoa expressed his condolences to Mr. Lee and his family and to the entire Audubon community.

Lastly, Superintendent Ochoa acknowledged the California School Employee Association, to recognize the excellent work being done by our Union President, Alicia Aragon and by her dedicated team, all of our secretaries, custodians and paraprofessionals and gardeners and the wonderful people who work in this district. He expressed that he is extremely grateful for the work that has been done and is happy that we have reached the tentative agreement.

5. PROPOSED CONSENT AGENDA (v)

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Chin a second by Trustee Watkins.

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

5.1. EDUCATION SERVICES

- 5.1.1. Early Literacy Instructional Materials PAF Reading Program
- 5.1.2. SchoolLoop Parent/Student Communication Tool
- 5.1.3. Reading & Writing Intervention Instructional Materials REWARDS

5.2. STUDENT SERVICES

5.2.1. CCTR Child Development Annual Program Self Evaluation

5.2.2. CSPP Child Development Annual Program Self Evaluation

5.2.3. Ratification of 2021 2022 Non Public Agency (NPA) Employee Contracts

5.2.4. Special Education Settlement Agreement

5.3. BUSINESS/FINANCE

5.3.1. Adoption of Resolution No. 34/20-21 - Turf Replacement Projects at Bayside, Audubon, Brewer Island, Fiesta Gardens, and George Hall Elementary School Campuses and Exemption from the California Environmental Quality Act

5.3.2. Contract with Powerschool Enrollment Predictive Services

5.3.3. Developer Fee Justification Study - Contract with Schreder & Associates

5.3.4. ClassLink - Three Year Site License

5.3.5. Purchase of 300 Lenovo Chromebooks

- 5.3.6. GoGuardian One Year Site License
- 5.3.7. Approval of the 2022-2023 Budget Assumptions

5.3.8. Agreement with the SM County Office of Education and the San Mateo-Foster City School District to implement the Alder GSE Teacher Residency Program

5.3.9. Contracts & Consultants \$45,000 and Under

5.3.10. Listing of Payments to Meet District Expenditures

5.4. HUMAN RESOURCES

5.4.1. Personnel Report: New Hires and Assignment Changes

5.4.2. Personnel Report: Resignations, Releases, and/or Retirements

6. EDUCATION SERVICES

6.1. Middle School History/Social Studies Materials Review and Discussion (2nd Review)

David Chambliss made a presentation and indicated that a committee of middle school teachers and district leads have led the piloting of several different history/social studies curricula this 2021-22 school year. The committee came to a consensus on adopting the Teacher's Curriculum Institute (TCI) *"History Alive!"* and *"Geography Alive!"* programs (copyright 2019). The curriculum materials will be on display at the District Office for teacher, parent, and community viewing in the IMC. Staff provided information to the Board at the May 12th, 2022 meeting and proposed adoption of the curriculum by the Board at the June 9th, 2022 meeting.

TCI printed and digital curriculum materials are proposed for purchase at a cost of \$850,000. Professional development from TCI to support implementation for the curriculum is included in the cost.

Joe Spina, 7th and 8th Grade Social Studies Teacher at Bayside Academy, gave a summary of the two programs he has piloted and indicated that he is excited about the programs since it enables the students to use their workbooks, many types of activities in every unit lesson, materials for teacher to use, support for teachers and students, slides to move through the unit to guide students, and learning pieces for teachers to offer to students for enrichment

Katherine Hofman, Borel teacher, expressed that it was easy to go through the materials online and in person, for Spanish and English, they shared the materials with other teachers and they were all excited with the materials. They already have used TCI and are excited to see the updates and being able to use it digitally.

Amelia Hollinsgworth, Bowditch Teacher, indicated that their original books have been used for 10 to 15 years, the teachers were ready to use new textbooks and that the program has been used to supplement the textbook and a lot of the methods in TCI is what she has used. The program has a lot of projects and activities to supplement and kids love it.

Fernando Figueroa, Abbott Spanish Social Studies Teacher, shared a presentation of student's work which showed the difference on how students are engaged with the new program.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

Trustee Watkins asked about the criteria that was used to evaluate the curriculum and what was included in that.

Joe Spina, Fernando Figueroa and Katherine Hofman summarized all the criteria that was used to select the program. They indicated that they all read the books, looked through the language perspective, the spanish perspective, the hands-on activities and materials. They concluded that the program shows history from different views and perspectives and balanced materials.

Board Comments:

All members of the board made comments about this agenda item and thanked the teachers for the great presentation and thanked everyone for the hard work in choosing this curriculum for the children. They also would like to know what the specific plan is moving forward and to make sure that we chose a culturally responsive curriculum.

Superintendent Ochoa also made comments about this item and thanked the teachers for the presentation and passion of educating our students in this district. He also indicated that he wanted to be of support to the comments of Trustee Watkins. Trying to achieve coherence, an effective system of setting resolution language in place and to bring the resolution back and apply it to each of the components that are included in the resolution and it shows a lot of forethought into how that language should be reflected and we don't want to lose presentation of under recognized groups and their contributions to history and think about that during these process.

7. BUSINESS/FINANCE

7.1. Status Report of Measure T and Measure X projects for Spring 2022

Amy Ruffo made a presentation about the status and gave a detailed explanation of the renovations that will take place at Bowditch Middle School, including the addition of a new gym. The construction cost project will be funded with Measures "X and "T" budgets at an approximate total budget of \$87 million.

Mrs. Ruffo also gave an update on other projects districtwide including the Abbott Gym restoration project to be completed in summer of 2022, the new School North Central site environmental work and progress to name a few.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

Trustee Proctor and Trustee Chin had clarifying questions about this item and the budgets for Measure T and Measure X.

Public Comments:

None

Board Comments:

Trustee Watkins thanked Mrs. Ruffo for the update and presentation and is excited about all the projects. Inquired about cost savings and hopes we could have a chart in writing at the next meeting that has the projected budget and when projects are completed.

Trustee Chin made a comment that he also would like to have something in writing about the projects and when they are complited and that the public needs to see what the money is being spent on.

Trustee Proctor thanked everyone for the hard work on these projects and it is great to hear that we are coming within budget.

7.2. Approval of Agreement between the San Mateo Foster City School District and the Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsula (v)

Patrick Gaffney made a presentation about the opportunity to partner with the Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsula who do tremendous work in our communities and indicated that what we have in from is a collaborative effort from a lot of people in our team and their team as well and to begin the program at San Mateo Park Elementary School and envision that this program will grow within our District and will be expanded to other schools in our District with resources for students and families.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

None

Public Comments:

None **Board Comments:**

Trustee Corzo indicated that she is excited about the program and that we will be partnering with them again and expanding childcare for our students that need the support and enrichment.

Trustee Watkins also thanked everyone that worked in this project and looks forward to it with more support for students and families.

Trustee Watkins indicated that this is such an amazing opportunity for the community to have access to affordable childcare and support. This is a great way to get started on building community schools.

Trustee Proctor expressed that this plays such a vital role in our community and is looking forward to the partnership with our school district.

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Chin a second by Trustee Watkins.

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

8. STUDENT SERVICES

8.1. Approval of Proposed Changes to Board Policies (Conduct, Discipline, Questioning/Apprehension) and Administrative Regulation (Discipline). (v)

Superintendent Ochoa indicated that to be able to take language that existed out there from policies and attempt to have it fit and align to the equity resolution, to be coherence and to ensure that all Board approved policies and Administrative Regulations related to student discipline are aligned with this resolution in fact and in spirit and that also includes student voice, racial equity, positive school climate, ending the school-to-prison pipeline and again that alignment to both the Sanctuary and Equity Task Force resolutions. Also indicated that these policies have not changed since our last meeting and our recommendation is that the board approved the changes.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

None

Public Comments:

None

Board Comments:

None

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Watkins a second by Trustee Corzo..

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

9. HUMAN RESOURCES

9.1. AB 1200 Public Disclosure of Cost for Salary Increases for Management and Confidential Employees

Sue Wieser indicated that Assembly Bill (AM) 1200 requires local education agencies to identify funding sources and publicly disclose substantial cost increases such as employee raises.

Attached for information to the Board are copies of the disclosure forms for Management and Confidential employee groups which summarize the financial implications of the salary increase.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

None

Public Comments:

Randy Paytner made comments about this item and inquired about the 33 percent increase on Mr. Gaffney's salary and requested an explanation of the increase.

Board Comments:

None

9.2. Approval of Management and Confidential Salary Increase and Salary Schedules for 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 (v)

Sue Wieser indicated that after meeting and conferring with the San Mateo Elementary Administrators Association (SMEAA) and Confidential representatives, the Superintendent recommends a 3% increase effective July 1, 2022 and a 3% increase effective July 1, 2023 to the respective salary schedules. Respectfully recommends the board of trustees to approve the salary increase.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

None

Public Comments:

None

Board Comments:

None

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Chin a second by Trustee Watkins.

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

9.3. Approval of Substitute Teacher Salary Increase (v)

Sue Wieser expressed that in an effort to provide additional incentives to Day to Day Substitute Teachers that work in multiple districts, the District also proposes the following:

Day to Day Substitute Teachers who work more than 15 days in the District will be paid \$210 per day beginning with the 16th day

Day to Day Substitute Teachers who work 30 days or more in the District will be paid \$225 per day beginning with the 31st day

Increasing the pay rate will help our District attract and retain new substitute teachers, assist in filling all absences when the teacher is absent from work and provide continuity of learning for students.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

None

Public Comments:

Larissa, Teacher on Special Assignment for our District indicated that this is a very important thing that is happening and is glad to see this on the agenda tonight.

Board Comments:

None

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Corzo a second by Trustee Warren.

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

10. SUPERINTENDENT SERVICES/BOARD

10.1. FIRST READ: SAN MATEO-FOSTER CITY 2022-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN

Superintendent Ochoa indicated that this is the first public review of the proposed 2022-2027 Strategic Plan and started by acknowledging and thanking the 70 stakeholders that attended the strategic plan committee meetings or subcommittee meetings for their comited and contribution to the plan. The plan is built to address our goals of creating learning opportunities for ALL Pre-K through 8th students resulting in closing the achievement gap and culminating in personal and academic success in high school and beyond; Reducing inequitable outcomes for ALL students and staff by prioritizing equity, access, & inclusion; providing a safe, caring, nurturing, and culturally responsive environment for ALL students to meet the needs of the whole child.

Superintendent Ochoa added that he met with strategic planning sub-groups to develop a 5-year plan for the San Mateo-Foster City School District. The strategic planning sub-group committees included: Addressing unequal discipline; Achievement monitoring & data; Culturally responsive curriculum & practices; Creating district-wide Multi-tiered Systems of Supports (MTSS); English Language Arts; English Language Development; Equity analysis & accountability for outcomes; Inclusion for children with special needs; LGBTQ+ inclusion, safety, & empowerment; Math; Student & Staff mental health; Staffing equity; SEL & Safe School Climate. It is recommended that the Board receive this presentation and discuss the proposed Strategic Plan.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

Trustee Watkins and Trustee Proctor made comments about this item and inquired about the vision of incorporating the task force that currently exists such as the equity task force and sanctuary task force and also what would be the plan for engaging the rest of the staff with this.

Public Comments:

Randy Paynter made a comment about this item.

Board Comments:

Trustee Chin thanked Superintendent Ochoa for the presentation and feels very comfortable in the direction that this is going. It is great to see all the details and he is happy with the way it is moving forward. Would love to see an organizational chart of all the people hired and the movement around internally in the District.

Trustee Watkins indicated that she continues to be grateful to everyone who has been involved in the process and stakeholders have dedicated a lot of time and is appreciative of the alignment of investing resources and curriculum to support professional development and coaching.

Trustee Corzo expressed that this is going to expedite all the work that we have been doing over the year and is really excited about that.

10.2. ORAL REPORT AND ACTION TO APPROVE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS FOR EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT: ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT OF EDUCATIONAL SERVICES & DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT/CBO (v)

Superintendent Ochoa expressed that executive managers are employed pursuant to individual written employment contracts approved by the Board of Trustees.

Assistant Superintendent: The term of the employment is from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025. David Chambliss is being recommended to be employed by the District as the Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services at an annual salary of \$234,519. The same medical, dental, vision and life insurance as provided to the District's management personnel will be made available to David Chambliss. The District will provide a \$1000 cap toward District medical coverage or in lieu of District medical coverage.

Deputy Superintendent/CBO: The term of the employment is from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2026. Patrick Gaffney is being recommended to be employed by the District as the Deputy Superintendent/CBO at an annual salary of \$270,000. The same medical, dental, vision and life insurance as provided to the District's management personnel will be made available to Patrick Gaffney. The District will provide a \$1000 cap toward District medical coverage or in lieu of District medical coverage.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

None

Public Comments:

Randi Paynter made a comment about this item and inquired about if the Superintendent Ochoa has any issue that the top leaders are being disproportionately occupied by men.

Board Comments:

Trustee Watkins expressed that she is grateful for everything that David and Patrick have brought to our District and to the team and grateful that both are committing to our District for some more time to continue to do this work and it is important for consistency's sake.

Trustee Proctor is appreciative of all the hard work and thankful that both David and Patrick will continue with our District.

Superintendent Ochoa also indicated that he would like to thank Dr. Paynter for her comments and expressed that as an educator he wants to always challenge himself to ask when we seek candidates for key positions are we cognizant of having diverse leadership and of having the very talented women in this District take key leadership roles. He proceeded to acknowledge all the women leaders in our district and also thanked the Assistant Superintendents present at the meeting tonight and appreciates the diversity and continuity.

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Chin a second by Trustee Watkins.

Yes Kenneth Chin Yes Noelia Corzo

- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

10.3. ORAL REPORT AND ACTION TO APPROVE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT FOR SUPERINTENDENT DIEGO RODRIGUEZ OCHOA [Gov. Code 54956(b)] (v)

Superintendent Ochoa requested Alison Proctor to present the item.

Trustee Proctor indicated that pursuant to Government Code section 54953, subdivision (c)(3), the Board will provide an oral summary of the salary and/or fringe benefit increase recommendation for the following local agency executive: Superintendent Diego R. Ochoa. The term of the new employment contract between the District and the executive is from May 26, 2022 through May 26, 2026.

The Superintendent shall serve as the chief executive officer of the District. In that capacity, the Superintendent shall perform all services, acts, and functions necessary or advisable to manage and conduct the business and operations of the District, subject at all times to state and federal laws and the policies, rules, and direction of the Board. The Superintendent is the leader of the Administrative Team and agrees to work effectively as a member of the team. Together, the Administrative Team plans, directs, and coordinates the operations of the District. The Superintendent shall perform the duties prescribed by the laws of the State of California, Board policy, the job description and Education code section 35035.

Clarifying Questions from the Board:

None

Public Comments:

Randi Paynter made a comment and indicated that she appreciates what Superintendent Ochoa has brought to our district and community and feels really good about it. She thanked the board for hiring Superintendent Ochoa and also thanked Superintendent Ochoa for the wonderful work that he is doing.

Board Comments:

Trustee Proctor indicated that this is a fair salary and that it represents the fact that we value Superintendent Ochoa and appreciates that he is a leadership, data focused, energetic and he roll up his sleeves and does the hard work and is glad that he is here and is glad that he will be here for four more years and it has been a pleasure to work with him and it is nice to hear positive feedback from the community and employees.

Trustee Chin expressed that Superintendent Ochoa has done everything and more in terms of what we were looking for and it has been tough this year with the pandemic. You help build community trust, and overall the strategic plan and are happy that you are here and we could extend the contract to make sure you will be here for the next four

years to go to the strategic plan and is happy with the way the District is going and supports this.

Trustee Watkins indicated that Superintendent Ochoa is doing what is right for the kids and not getting distracted by the challenges that emerge in difficult situations and appreciates that. She is glad that we have this moment to say thank you and appreciates everything and we are grateful that we can continue along this journey and implement all the things that we spent a lot of time talking about.

Trustee Warren also expressed that she is thankful for all the things that Superintendent Ochoa is doing in our District and it is exciting to hear how informed the public feels with the changes and community style and it is taking a lot of steps in repairing and reconciling that relationship with the public.

Trustee Corzo thanked Superintendent Ochoa for the great job he has led and how he has prioritized the health of the students and appreciates the way he brings people in. Also indicated that she sees the Superintendent's wife on the zoom and she is glad she is here to hear us sing your praises and to know that all the time that you spend away from home is well worth it and you are making a huge impact on kids.

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Corzo a second by Trustee Watkins.

- Yes Kenneth Chin
- Yes Noelia Corzo
- Yes Alison Proctor
- Yes Lisa Warren
- Yes Shara Watkins

Superintendent Ochoa thanked the School Board and community for engaging with us and indicated that he would like to focus his comments on the things that he is going to approve next year as a Superintendent and feels good about how far we made it this year but would like to share with the board and the community that they will see a really substantial increase in the amount of time he spends in teachers classrooms next school year and at the schools more.

Superintendent Ochoa also indicated that he wanted to assure our community and school board that you are going to see from our District next year is some very innovative timely data oriented analysis of how our students are doing days after they take our District-wide test and we will invest in the system of support that we have created to respond and react in real time to instances of students who are not making academic progress. Also added that in a couple of weeks we will initiate the L3 which is the Live, Lead and Learn outcomes report which will be a beautiful colored project that is going to be sent out to all of our families. He ended by stating that he will be meeting with parents in our community more and holding more parent focused engagements in

both English and Spanish to draw as many of our stakeholders into the conversation about how we educate our children and is honored to continue to do this work and you have my commitment and my focus to do this together with everybody.

11. BOARD MEMBER STATEMENTS AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Trustee Chin indicated that the one future item that he would like to talk about is changes with new board members and the election. The idea is that we do have board community workshops coming that are in the areas east of 101 that would be really great for us to promoto, that there is an election and we do need candidates.

Trustee Corzo commented that she will give her update on the CSBA Delegate at the next meeting.

12. FUTURE MEETING DATES

May 31, 2022 - Special Board Meeting - School Visitation

June 9, 2022 - Regular Board Meeting

June 23, 2022 - Regular Board Meeting

13. ADJOURNMENT

Trustee Chin indicated that they adjourned in Honor of Mr. Lee, the teacher who passed away, for his dedication to our School District and the Audubon community and Foster City community.

The regular board meeting adjourned at 10:51 pm.

13.1. Adjournment (v)

Motion Passed: Passed with a motion by Trustee Chin a second by Trustee Proctor.

Yes Kenneth ChinYes Noelia CorzoYes Alison ProctorYes Lisa WarrenYes Shara Watkins

Board Secretary